SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

Regd. Office :- Surya House, L-5, B-1I, Krishna Marg, C-Scheme, Jaipur - 302001 Rajasthan INDIA
{Ph).:- +91 141 2379483, 2372946 = Fax - 0141-2365888 * Mail :- salt@suryasalt.com | account@suryasalt.com
. CIN:-L15493RJ1394PLC00816

Date: 05.09.2025
Ref: SFL/IPR/2025

Corporate Relation Department,
Bombay Stock Exchange

25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Kala Ghoda, Fort,
Mumbai, Maharashtra-400001

Sub.: Submission of 31%' Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25

Ref: Scrip code 531982

Dear Sir,

We hereby inform you that the 31% (Thirty-First) Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the members of
the Company will be held on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 04:30 AM. (IST) through Video
Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM"}, in accordance with the relevant circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, we enclose herewith the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 (including Notice of the
AGM to be held on September 27, 2025, and Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report).

The Annual Report including Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at:
hitps://spectrumfoodslimited.com

Kindly take the same on record.

Thanking you

Yours Truly
For Spectrum Foods Limited

Digitally signed

GIRDHA byaciroHAR
SABOO
R SABQOQ pate: 2025.09.05

19:59:59 +05'30"
Girdhar Saboo
Managing Director
DIN:00364750

Factory : Badi Dhani, Tehsil - Bap, Dist. - Phalodi, Jodhpur - 342 301 (Raj.) INDIA
Resort ;- "Samskara Resorts, Pushkar” Khasra No. 164-165, Kadel Road,
Village Rewat, Tehsil-Pushkar, Ajmer - 305 021 (Raj.)



ANNUAL REPORT




ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025  SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED




7

samskara
PUSHKAR
RESORT & SPA



PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS & FACILITIES

Samskara Resort Pushkar 1s a one-of-its kind luxury boutique resort made with loving attention to detail. It 1s geared to detox,
de-stress and de-clutter mind body and soul. It 1s nestled 1n the lap of nature, far away irom the madding crowds and takes the
meaning of 'personalised service' to a whole new level.

Beautiful landscapes and avenues bring the verdant outdoors indoor and create private havens for the guest. Multiple venues
for different events and activities ensure that all your celebrations have a unique setting.

150 keys designed in varying configurations ranging from luxury rooms to deluxe villas to luxury one and two bedroom villa
with private pools each having private lounges, garden and sit out spaces ensures a leisurely stay with a boutique touch.
Each unit offers a unique set of facilities and mesmerising views, promising an unforgettable experience for every guest.

Exemplary guest facilities from splendid reception plaza to central lawns, private venues, multi level pool, pool side party deck,
bar, restaurant with outdoor space flowing to lawns and pool, spa, gym, kids play areas etc. are all designed for the guest to
take back unforgettable memories of the property.

In addition, ample guest and service parking, evenly spread kitchens, pantries, toilet blocks, straight and easy service roads,
dedicated passage for services away from guest movement, conveniently placed back office areas and staff residences make for
efficient staff working and manpower deployment.

Join us 1n creating a haven of indulgence, where guests can immerse themselves in Pushkar's rich culture and tranquillity, while
enjoying exceptional luxury, and impeccable service.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

(CIN: L15499R11994PLCODB0O1E)
Telephone Mo.: +91 141-4191000, 2379483 E-mail: account@suryasait.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Girdhar 3aboo Mr. Gajendra Singh Rathare
Managing Director Directar [ Mop-Executive Ind=pendent)
DiN: 0364750 DiM: 10328268
hir. Madan Singh lain {zppointed w.af 12 0&3024) hir. Rake<h Godha
Ditector (Non-Executive Independent) Wheoie Time Director
DIN: 02301140 DiN: DES40738
Mr=. Sangita Dewi Mir. Kailash Chand Sharma
Directar | Non-Executive Non Independant) Chief Financial Officer
DiN: 09161446

Mr. Kailash Chand Sharma
Ms. Gopal Kumawat (Resigned w.e f 12 .02 2024} Directar [ Maon-Executive Non independent]
Director (Non-Executive Non independent) DIM: 10383593
DiM: 10328653

sz, Presti Sharmairesigned we § 25,11 2024)
M. Nakul Sharma (appointad woe f 25.11.2024) Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Statutory Auditor Corporate Adwisors
M= R.PEHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES W'z Maredi Vinod E: Associates
Chartered Accountants Company Secretariss,
103, 1™ Foar, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Plot Mo. 56, Rameshwar Dham,
Station Road, Jaipur— 302001 Near Kedia Place, Murlipura,

Jeipur- 302013 Rajasthan.

Registered Office Factory Address
L-5, B-ll, Erishna Marg, Badi Dhani, Bap,
C-Schame, laipur-302001 Tehsil Phalodi, lodhpur
{Rajasthzn) {Rajasthan)

Bankers

State Bank of Indiz

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd.
Bestal House, 3= Floor, 99, Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre
Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-62
Tel 011 2995 128182
Fax: 011 2996 1284

Important Communication to Mambers
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a "Green initiative in the Corparate Governance™ by allowing paperless compliances by the Companies

and has issued circulars stating that service of notice/documeants including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this Green
initiative of the Gowvernment in full measure, members who have not registerad their e-mail addresses so far, ars requestad to register their e-mail
addreszses, in respect of slectronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants, Members whao hold shares in
Physical form are reguested to register their 2-mail addresses with the Company.
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NOTICE OF 31 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 31™ Annual General Meeting of the members of Spectrum Foods Limited will be held
on Saturday, 277 September, 2025 at 04:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM), to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as on 31™ March, 2025
including any explanatory note annexed there to, or forming part of the aforementioned documents,
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. 5angita Devi, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herseif
for re-appointment in this regards.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR FOR THE TERM OF FIVE COMSECUTIVE YEARS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, and in accordance with Repulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
including any statutory modification(s), amendment{s), or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force,
and based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, the approval of the members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s Naredi Vinod and Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, a peer-reviewed firm duly recognized by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (IC51), as
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for conducting the Secretarial Audit for compliance under the
Companies Act, 2013 and 5EBI regulations, for the term of five consecutive financial years commencing from
Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial Year 2029-30 on such remuneration and terms and conditions as may be
mutually agreed upon by the board and the said secretarial auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors [including any committee thereof] be and are hereby
authorized to determine the remuneration, finalize terms and conditions of appointment, and to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, desirable, or expedient to give effect to this resolution,
including the filing of necessary forms, disclosures, and intimations with statutory authorities and stock
exchanges as applicable.”

4. CONSIDERATION FOR TRANSFER OF BUSINESS UNIT TO THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180{1}(a), Section 188, and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules framed thereunder {including any statutory
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modification(s) or re-enactment{s} thereof for the time being in force), and in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the
Nembers of the Company be and is hereby accorded to transfer, sell and assign the Samskara Resorts, Pushkar
(Business Unit) of the Company (not amounting to an undertaking as defined under Section 180(1)(a) of the
Act), to Siyana Resorts Private Limited, Subsidiary company and related party, on a going concern basis, for a
lump sum consideration to be determined on the basis of book value of the Assets and Liabilities, with effect
from such date as may be mutually agreed upon between the parties and approved by the Board of Directors
and Shareholders in ensuing meetings.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the transfer shall include all assets and liabilities, contracts, licenses, employees, and
obligations pertaining to the said business unit, and shall be effected at their book values, on an "as is where is"
and "as is what is" basis, without assigning values to individual assets and liabilities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company [hereinafter referred to as the “Board”,
which term shall be deemed to include any committee thereof) be and is hereby authorized to finalize the
terms and conditions of said transfer, execute necessary business transfer agreement{s) and such other
documents as may be reguired, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary,
desirable or expedient in connection therewith to give effect to this resolution, including but not limited to
determining the effective date, obtaining requisite approvals, and settling any questions or difficulties arising in
the course of implementation of the transfer.”

TO ENTER INTO RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification (s) the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 {as amended]},
and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the approval of
the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Company to
enter into related party transactions in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, with the
related parties and up to the maximum limits as mentiocned in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this
Motice.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in its absolute
discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any guestion, difficulty or doubt that may arise in
the said regard.”

Date: 05.09.2025 By Order Of The Board
Place: Jaipur Sd/-

Girdhar Saboo
Managing Director
(DIN- 00364750)
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NOTES:

1. Asyou are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-159 global pandemic, the general meetings of the
companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide
Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17,/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other
audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through
VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Repulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-
voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by CD5L.

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first
come first served basis, This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee and 5takeholders Relationship Committee,
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served
basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote
for tha members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of
the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a
State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVYM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling
the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://spectrumfoodslimited.com/. The
Motice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The
AGM/EGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remaote e-Voting
facility and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.
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In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 General Circular No.
02/2022 dated 05.05.2022 and General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and after due examination, It
has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs are due in the Year 2023 or 2024, to conduct their AGMs
through VC or OAVM on or before 30th September, 2024 in accordance with the requirements laid down in
Para 3 and Para 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding

shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-

()

(ii)

(iif)

individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting period begins on <24 September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M.> and ends on <26 September, 2025 at 05: 00
P.M.> During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of <20 September, 2025> may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

Pursuant to 5EBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 1Ds and passwords by the
shareholders,

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided
to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication
but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding

(iv)

shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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3)

4)

2)

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders: Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode with CDSL Depository

Login Method:

Users who have opted for CD5L Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to
Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cds! website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & My Easi New
(Token) Tab.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where
the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the
user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-\oting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website www.cdslindiz.com
and click on login & My Easi New {Token)} Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No.
from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page .The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-\oting Service Providers.

Type of shareholders: Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL Depository

Login Method:

1) I you are already registered for NSDL |DeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website

2) of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner”
icon under "Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. & new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-\Voting services. Click
on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeA3 e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at hittps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb,/IdeasDirectRes.jso
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Comgputer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting
system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which is available under “Shareholder/Member” section. & new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID {i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depaository site wherein you can see e-\Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4} For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will
have to enter your 8-digit DP |D, 8-digit Client |d, PAN Mo., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP
received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-\Voting pericd or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Type of shareholders: Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their
Depository Participants (DP)

Login Method:

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vating facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Once you click on &Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-\oting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User |0/ Password are advised to use Forget User |D and
Forget Password option available at above mentioned websita.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type: Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode with CD5L:-
Helpdesk details:

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evotingi@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 -22 -55- 33

Login type: Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode with NSDL:-

Helpdesk details:
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(v)

1)
2)
3)

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact MSDL helpdesk by sending a reguest at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 -1020 -590 and 1800- 22- 44- 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and
non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

Click on "Shareholders” module.

Mow enter your User D

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Client |D,

c. Sharehoiders holding shares in Physical Form shouid enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

if you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www . evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

It you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN —
Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

¢ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details OR Date of Birth (DOB):-

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth {in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your

demat account or in the company records in order to login.

* |f both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio
number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(wi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT” tab.
(wil) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to
vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(wvifi)For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions

contained in this Notice.
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(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <SPECTRUM FOODS LTD= on which you choose to vote.

(%) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option "YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resclution and
option MO implies that you dissent to the Resolution,

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT", A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.

{xiii) Once you "CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system,

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to
scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii} Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

* MNon-Individual shareholders {i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia,.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdask.evoting@cdslindia.com.

»  After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account{s) for which they wish to vote on.

*  The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong
mapping.

* |t is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (PCA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

» Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz account@suryasalt.com
(designated email address by company),if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CD5L
e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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10.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING

MEETING ARE AS UNDER.-

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed fto avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Maobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefare
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at account@suryasalt.com. The shareholders who do
not wish to speak during the AGM but have gueries may send their gueries in advance 7 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
account@suryasalt.com. These gueries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the mesating is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

e

10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio Mo., Mame of shareholder, scannad copy
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN {self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP} which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

The relevant details as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), of persons seeking appointment / re-appointment as Directors are also
annexed.

The register of Members and Share Transfer Bocks of the Company will remain closed from 207 September,
2025 to 26 September, 2025 (both days inclusive).

Mon-Resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P} Ltd,,
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company immediately about:

The change in the Residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

The particulars of the Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account
number and address of the Bank, if not furnished earlier.

Members requiring information on the accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 7 (Seven) days
before the date of the meeting to enable the Company to furnish the information.

Members are requested to:

Iintimate change in their Registered Addresses, if any, in respect of Equity Shares held in electronic form
(Dematerialized form) to their Depository Participant(s).

Intimate the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent about any change in their Registered Addresses in respect of
equity shares held in physical form.

Quote the registered folio number / DP-ID and CL-ID in all future correspondence.

To address their grievances to the Company Secretary if any, at the Registered Office of the Company.
Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

In ease you have any gqueries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
("FAOs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

The Company has appointed Mr. Vinod Maredi, Company Secretary in whole time practice as Scrutinizer, for
conducting the process in a fair and transparent manner.

Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name(s} of the public
shareholder(s) on the cut-off date i.e. September 20, 2025.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting
period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company
and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the
Company.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report addressed to the Board of Directors of the Company, to the Chairman
appointed by the Company in this regard or to any other person duly authorized in this behalf by the Chairman,
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15.

185.

17.

after completion of scrutiny of including e-voting in a fair and transparent manner. The results of the will be
announced by the Chairman appointed by the Company in this regard or by the Person authorized in this behalf
by the Chairman at the Registered Office of the Company and will also be published in newspapers and
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Motice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting
of the Company. Members desirous of inspecting the same may send their request at account@suryasalt.com
from their registered email address mentioning their name and folio/demat account numbers.

The investors may contact the Company Secretary for redressed of their grievances/queries. For this purpose,
they may either write to him at the Registered office address or e-mail their grievances/queries to the Company
Secretary at the following e-mail address- account@suryasalt.com

Queries on account and operations may please be sent to the Company, 7 days in advance of the Annual
General Meeting so that the answers may be made available at the meeting.

Date: 05.09.2025 By Order Of The Board
Place: Jaipur 5d/-
Girdhar Saboo

Managing Director
(DIN- 00364750)
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPARMIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the
accompanying Notice:

item No. 3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed company is required to annex with its Board's
report a Secretarial Audit Report, given by a Company Secretary in practice.

Further, as per Regulation 24A of the SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a
listed entity is required to conduct an annual Secretarial Audit and submit a report from a Company Secretary in
practice in the format specified by SEBI.

In compliance with the above provisions, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the
management and subject to approval of the members, proposes to appoint M/s Naredi Vinod and Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, having a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSl), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive financial years
from FY 2025-26 to FY 2025-30.

M/s Maredi Vinod and Associates possess relevant experience and professional competence in secretarial and
corporate legal matters and meet the eligibility criteria as prescribed under the applicable laws.

The remuneration and other terms of appointment shall be mutually decided between the Board of Directors and
the said Secretarial Auditor.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Item No. 4:

The Company operates a hospitality unit under the name "5amskara Resort, Pushkar”, which is proposed to be
transferred to Siyana Resorts Private Limited, a group company, as part of internal business restructuring and
strategic alignment of operations within the group.

This business unit does not constitute an "undertaking” as defined under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013, and its transfer will not result in the disposal of a substantial part of the Company’s assets or business.
However, since the transfer is to a related party, the transaction attracts the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 23 of the 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, which require the prior approval of the Members of the Company by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

The key terms of the proposed transaction are as follows:

s The business unit shall be transferred to the group company i.e. Siyana Resorts Private Limited and such
sale will be on a poing concern basis, ensuring continuity of operations.
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= All assets and liabilities pertaining to the said unit shall be transferred at their book values.

= The consideration shall be determined on the basis of the book value of the assets and liabilities being
transferred and shall be payable in a lump sum.

s  The transaction shall be subject to execution of definitive agreements and requisite approvals, if any.

The transfer is expected to bring operational efficiency, focus, and strategic benefits to both the transferor and the
transferee entities within the group.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in ltem Mo. 4 of the Notice for approval of the members by way of an
ordinary resolution.

Mone of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) or their relatives, except to the extent of their
shareholding or directorship/interest in the group company (if any), are in any way concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the members by way of an
ordinary resolution.

Item No. 5:

Under Section 188 of the companies Act and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, all Related Party Transactions shall require prior
approval of the Audit Committee and all material Related Party Transactions shall require approval of the
Shareholders through resclution. The said Regulation further provides a definition of the term ‘Material’ as follows:

“A transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction / transactions to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company.”

Mr. Girdhar Saboo, Managing Director {also, the Key Managerial Personnel as per Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013} and promoter of the Company is also Managing Director and promoter of Saboo Sodium Chloro Limited.

As a part of its regular business, the Company sells and/or purchase salt, spices and Other ltems to/from Saboo
Sodium Chioro Limited, laipur at an arm’s length basis under the purchase orders ralsed from time to time, and in
the FY 2025-26, the aggregate value of these transactions is likely to be around Rs. 20 Crore {Rupees Twenty Crore
Only).

Further, Mr. Girdhar Saboo, Managing Director (also, the Key Managerial Personnel as per Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013) and promoter of the Company has let out his personal property as office premises to the
Company and Company pays rent for the same to him and in F.Y. 2025-26, the aggregate value of the transaction is
likely to be around Rs. 25 Lacs (Rupees Twenty-Five Lacs Only).

In line with the business growth and operational needs, the Company anticipates that the aggregate value of
certain related party transactions may exceed the limits previously approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, the
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Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 05th September, 2025, based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, approved the proposal to enhance the existing limits for the following transactions:

F MNature of Name of the Director/KMP who Name: ot relaled
h;D transaction as per is related and nature of their - Amount
" | Section 188 relationship P
Mr. Girdhar Saboo ;
1 Pz:ia;?ﬁ:lifai (MD and promoter of 3aboo iﬁi;g dSndium Gl 20.00Cr.
& Sodium Chloro Ltd.)
Payment of rent for
5 Ieasmlg office Mr. Girdhar Saboo (WD) Mr. Girdhar $aboo 25 00 Lacs
premises to the
company

A. Details of the related party and transactions with the related party
A. (1). Basic details of the related party
5. No. Particulars of the information | Information provided by the mments of the
management Andit Commitiee
Wame of the related party i Saboo Sodium Chloro Limited | Nil
| (Group Company)
| Girdhar Saboo (Individual) .
Country of incorporation of the | India | -
related party | :
Nature of business of the related FMCCG (Salt and Spices Nil
party Manufacturing)
{Wind Eneroy generation

A. (2). Relationship and ownership of the related party

and the related party. Director and Promoter (Group
Company}
Managing Director and

Rélaﬁuﬂship between the listed entity |  Having same Ha_uaging IN
Promoter [

vil

Sharcholding or confribution 9% or %Sha:ahnlding: "'\T:I
profit & loss sharing % of the listed | I
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entity, whether direct or indirect, in |
the related party.

Shareholding of the related party, |1 Shareholding of Saboo [Ni

whether direct or indirect, in the | sodium Chioro

listed entity. {2. Shareholding of Mr. Girdhar
| Saboo:

A.(3). Financial performance of the related pary

Standalone turnover of the related |2022-2023 - 4935.61 Lakhs Nl
party for each of the last three [2023-2024 : 5178.68 Lakhs

financial vears: 2024-2025: 5501.98 Lakhs

Standalone net worth of the [2022-2023 - 4632.55 Lakhs N1l
related party for each of the last | 2023-2024 - 465559 Lakhs

three financial years: | 20242025 - 4687 04 Lakhs

Standalone net profits of the (2022.2023 - B.65 Lakhs Nil
related party for each of the last | 2023-2024 - 23.04 Lakhs
three financial years: 2024.2025 - 3145 Lakhs

A(4). Details of previons transactions with the related party

Total amount of all Saboo sodivm Chioro Limited: [Nil
the transactions | 2022-2023 : within 10 Crores
undertaken by the | Lmit
listed entity with the | 2023-2024 ; within 10 Crores
related party during | limit
each of the last three | 2024-2025 : within 10 Crores
financial years. lirmit

rirdhar Saboo:

2022-2023 :15 Lakh
2023-2024 - 15 Lakh
2024-2025 - 15 Lakh

B. Details for specific transactions

B(1). Basic details of the proposed transaction

Specific type of the Sale of goods/services, | Nil
proposed purchase of
transaction goods/ services
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approval = being
sought?

Detail:  of the | Purchase/Sale of | Nil
proposed Goods/Services
transaction
Tenure of the 1¥ear | Wil
proposed
transaction
There is no such There 15 no such | il
Indicative Indicative date /
date / timeline
timeline
Whether omnibus No I Vil

'Whether the RPTs
proposed to be

entered into are:
not prejudicial to

| Cerrtificate from the
Managing Director
(EMP and Promotet)
has been taken (as

Nl

entering into the
EPT,
demonstrating
how the proposed
RPT s=serves the
best interests of
the listed entity
and 1z public
shareholders.

being conducted on an
arm’s length basts_ and
the pricing, terms; and
conditions are
comparable to stmlar
transactions with
unrelated third parties.
The transactions
undertaken will serve
the following:
1. long-standing
relationship
2. Strategic and
Commercial Rationale
overall efficiency,
competitiveness, and

| profitabilty

the interest of | referred in Para 3(2}b)
public of these Standards)
shareholders, and

going to be carried

out on the same

terms and

conditions as

would be

applicable to any

party who is not a

related party

Provide a clear Nil
justification  for | The transaction 1s

B(2).

Additional details

for
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proposed transactions relating to
sale, purchase or supply of goods
Of services or any other similar

business transaction

where bids

Were not | The transaction was carried

mvited, the out without inviting

fact shall be 2l g

disclosed competitive bids for the

along  with following reasons:

the

justification | 1. Qur Related party has

for the same. been a trusted and
consistent
supplier/customer/servi
ce provider over the
years.

2. The goods/services
involved are of a
specialized nature and
tailored to the
company s specific
operational needs.

3. Inviting bids for such
routine, reCurring or
time-sensitive
transactions may have
caused unnecessary
delavs or disruptions in
the business operations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have confirmed that these transactions are in the best interests of the
Company, are at prevailing market rates, and shall not be detrimental to the interests of the minority
shareholders,

The Members' approval to the above material related party transactions is sought in terms of Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules therein and Regulation 23{4) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, other than Mr. Girdhar 5aboc and his
relatives, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.
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GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY:

Mature of Industry FMCG (Salt and Spices Manufacturing)

Wind Energy generation

Year of Commencement of Commercial | 1994

Production

Financial Performance Rs. 12,37,000
Export Performance Nil '
Foreign Investment il

OTHER INFORMATION:

1) Reasons for inadequate profit:
The sale of Company’s Food grade salt has declined during the year under purview hence company has not
earned enough profit. Company is also into windmill energy generation and has earmned profit in that segment
as mentioned in the audit report annexed to this annual report.
2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement;
The company has undertaken stringent cost actions. The management continues to explore new avenues to
increase revenue of the company through judicious investments in capabilities. Your company is planning to
add more FMCG products so that it can increase its productivity and profit too.
3) Expected increase in productivity and profits:
The company is committed to build the business operations within budget and considering that the business
operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that the financial position of the company will improve further
in near future.
Date: 05.09.2025 By Order Of The Board
Place: Jaipur
sd/-
Girdhar Saboo
Managing Director

(DIN- 00364750)
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Spectrum Foods Ltd.

Your Directors are pleased to present the 317 Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 317 March, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2025, as compared to the previous year are
summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars | Financial year ended | Financial year ended
31% March, 2025 | 31 March, 2024

Total Income 2207.65 2183.42

Profit before depreciation and taxation 100.77 f 315.15
Depreciation 89.95 101.14

Profit befare tax 10.82 . 214.01
Taxation (including Deferred Taxation and (1.55) | B1.30
Short/Excess Provision for Earlier year)

Profit (loss) after Tax 12.37 ' 132.71

TURNOVER, PROFITS & FUTURE PROSPECTS

The total income during the year under review was Rs.2207.65 in lakh against Rs. 2183.42 in Lakh for the previous
year. However, company could make a profit of Rs. 12.37 lakhs after tax.

The company has delivered record financial & operating performance amidst competitive and volatile market
condition. Board is taking necessary steps to improve the performance of the Company and to have better working
results in the coming years.

DEPRECIATION AND FINANCE COSTS
Depreciation for the year was Rs. 89.55 Lakhs as against Rs. 101.14 Lakhs for the previous year. Finance costs for
the year ended 31st March, 2025 was Rs. 6.19 Lakhs, as against Rs. 6.13 Lakhs in the previous year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company is not proposing to transfer any amount to the Reserves of the Company.

DIVIDEND

In view of the financial position of the Company, the Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the
year ended 317 March, 2025,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The company does not meet the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 so there is no reguirement to constitute Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee.
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TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
The Provisions of section 125{2) of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as there was no dividend declared or
paid last year.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There was no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which may impact the
going concern status and company’s operations in future.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTEENAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCLAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements.
Statutory Auditors in their report have expressed their opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
the financial statements, which is self-explanatory. The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, in terms of the

provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 and hence no ameount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of
the balance sheet,

PARTICULARS OF 1 OANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Pursuant to section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule ¥ of the Listing Regulations, disclosure on particulars
relating to Loans, Advances, Guarantees and Investments are provided as part of the Financial Statements.

BEORROWINGS / INDEBTNESS
Pursuant to section 180(1)@ of Companies Act, 2013, disclosure on particulars relating to borrowing and
indebtness are provided as part of the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the Financial Year under review, the Company does not have any subsidiary. The Company did not have any
joint venture or associate company as on 31st March 2025,

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY
The Current Capital Structure of the Company is given below:-

1. AUTHORISED CAPITAL:-
During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Authorised Capital of the Company has increased from Rs.
25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Only) divided into 2,50,00,000 ( Two crore fifty [akh ) equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each [Rupees Ten Each) to Rs. 25,40,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Forty Lakhs Only) divided
into 2,54,00,000 (Two Crores Fifty Four Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- [Rupees Ten Each).
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2.

ISSUED CAPITAL:-
During the Financial Year 2024-25 the lssued Capital of the Company is BRs. 24,24,19,300/- [Rupees Twenty

Four Crore Twenty Four Lakh Nineteen Thousand Three Hundred Only) divided into 2,42,41,930 {Two Crores
Forty Two Lakh Forty One Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- [Rupees Ten Each).

SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL:-
During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Subscribed & paid up Capital of the Company is Rs. 24,13,54,110/-

(Rupees Twenty Four Crore Thirteen Lakh Ninety Four Thousand One Hundred Ten Only) divided into
2,40,35,748 (Two Crore Forty Lakh Thirty Five Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty Eight) Equity Shares of Rs.

10/- {Rupees Ten Each).

Cut of the above-mentioned |ssued Equity Shares, 2,05,038 (Two Lakh Five Thousand Thirty-Eight) shares have
been forfeited, and the application for recording the Forfeiture is in process. The same will be filed shortly on

the BSE portal).

SHARES

1.

BUY-BACK OF SHARES:
During the year under review, company has not bought back any of its shares.

SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:
During the year under review, company has not issued any Sweat Equity shares.

BONUS SHARES:
During the year under review, company has not issued any Bonus shares.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:
During the year under review, company has not provided any Stock option plan to its employees.

BUSINESS

1.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

2. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, company has conducted 16 (Sixteen) Board meetings. The detailed disclosure of
the Board of Directors and their Meetings is given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of

this report.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Company’s Board of Directors are eminent persons of proven competence and integrity.
Besides experience, strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness and leadership qualities, they have a
significant degree of commitment towards the Company and devote adequate time to the meetings and

preparation.
The detailed disclosure of the Board of Directors is given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms

part of this report.
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4. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Details of changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as follows:

Mame of Director Designation Date of Change Nature of Change
Mon-Executive

Madan Singh Jain Independent Director 12.08.2024 Appointment

Gopal Kumawat Additional Director 12.08.2024 | Resignation

Preeti Sharma Company Secretary 25.11.2024 | Resignation

Makul Sharma Company Secretary 25.11.2024 | Appointment

6. Key Managerial Personnel
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on
March 31, 2025 are:

Mir. Girdhar Saboo [DIN: 00364750) Managing Director
Mr. Makul Sharma Company Secretary

5. PERFORMANCE EVAILUATION CRITERIA FOR DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its
own performance, Board Committees and Individual Directors, The performance of the Board was evaluated
by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee
Members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee
meetings, etc. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the
Independent Director being evaluated.

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
whole and the Chairman of the Company and Whole time Directors was evaluated., The Chairman of the Board
and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on
the basis of the criteria approved by the Board. Each Commitiee and the Board expressed satisfaction on the
performance of each Director.

6. Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all its Independent Directors, confirming that they meet the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder
and Regulation 18(1){b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge
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their duties. In the opinion of the Board, Independent directars fulfill the conditions specified in Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent from the management.

Further, all the Directors of the Company, including Independent Directors, possess appropriate skills,
experience, and expertise in one or more areas such as Board and Corporate Governance, Finance, Accounting
and Financial Reporting, Information Technology, specialized industry knowledge, environmental matters, and
other disciplines relevant to the Company’'s business operations.

7. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
A separate meeting of Independent Directors as required under the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
was held on 28* March, 2025, without presence of Executive Directors. Such meeting was conducted to review
and evaluate:
{a) the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whale,
{b} the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors and
{c] assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties,
The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction with the performance of Non-Independent Directors
and the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Independent Directors meeting briefed the outcome of the
meeting to the Chairman of the Board.
The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the overall performance of the Directors and the Board
as a whole.

AUDITORS

1. STATUTORY AUDITOR

3.

M/s R P Khandelwal & Associates. Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 001795C) was appointed as
Statutory Auditars for a period of Five years in the Annual General Meeting held on 24" September, 2022, Their
continuance of appointment and payment of remuneration are to be confirmed and approved in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any clarification/
explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-explanatory, and needs no further explanation.

Further the Auditors” Report for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2025 is annexed herewith for your kind
perusal and information.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Naredi Vinod &
Associates (CP Mo, 7994, ACS: 20453), Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial audit of the company
for the financial year 2024-2025.

INTERNAL AUDITOR
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Mr. Aditya Khunteta (ICAl Membership NMumber:434255), Partner of M/s Aditya Khunteta & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, perform the duties of Internal Auditors of the company and their report is reviewed by
the audit committee from time to time.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAINMERS
MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY:

There are no qualifications or observations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial
Auditors in their respective reports.

SELECTION AND PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") which is responsible for developing
competency requirements for the Board, based on the industry and stratepy of the Company. The Board
composition analysis reflects an in-depth understanding of the Company, including its strategies, environment,
operations, financial condition and compliance requirements.

The MRC makes recommendations to the Board with regard to the appointment of new Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and senior management. The role of the NRC encompasses conducting a gap
analysis to refresh the Board on a periodic basis; including each time a Director’s appointment or re-appointment is
required. The MRC is also responsible for reviewing the profiles of potential candidates vis-a-vis the required
competencies, undertake a reference and due diligence and meeting of potential candidates prior to making
recommendations of their nomination to the Board. The appointee is also briefed about the specific requirements
for the position including expert knowledge expected at the time of appointment.

LISTING AT STOCK EXCHANGE
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company confirms that it has paid the
Annual Listing fees for the year 2024-25 to BSE where the Company’s shares are listed,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES.

The information required pursuant to Section 157 read with Rule 5 of The Companies [Appecintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is as follows:

The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 3{2) and rule 5{3) of
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Employed throughout the year- Nil

b) Employed for part of the year- Nil

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any fixed deposit from the public in the terms of the
provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134{3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies [Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as "Annexure A",
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INSURANCE
All properties and insurable interests of the Company including building, plant and machinery and stocks have been
insured.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent
manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior, the company
has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. This policy is explained in Corporate Governance Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The report on Management Discussion and Analysis as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the S5tock exchange is set out as
'‘Annexure B' to the Director's Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance specified by Securities &
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) through Listing Regulations, 2015. As required by the said regulations, a separate
Report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Annual Report of the Company as "Annexure D" to the Board
Report,

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
on Board and General Meetings.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are no material changes and commitments in the business operations of the company from the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025 to the date of signing of the Director's Report.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations ebtained by them,
your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c} of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any,

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Motes to the Financial Statements have been selected and
applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as on March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the
company for the year ended on that date,
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c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis,

g) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively.

fl that systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adeguate and
operating effectively.

GREEN INITIATIVE

In accordance with General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 issued by Ministry of Corparate Affairs and
circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 issued by SEBI, the Company has sent the Annual
Report /Notice of AGM only through electronic mode to those Shareholders whose e-mail |ds were registerad with
the Company /RTA / Depository Participants.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the reguirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Repulations, your Company has formulated a
Policy on  Related Party Transactions which is also awvailable on Company’s  website
https://spectrumfoodslimited.com.

The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all
transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm’'s
Length basis. There were Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements, were entered during the year by your Company.
Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseeable and
repetitive nature.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) and applicable rules
of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AQC-2 is provided as Annexure C to this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-5exual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee {ICC)
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. There were no complaints recaived during the year
under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Company is committed to conduct its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations
and highest standards of business ethics. In recognition thereof, the Board of Directors has implemented a Code of
Conduct for adherence by the Directors, Senior Management Personnel and Employees of the Company. The Code
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of Conduct is dealing with ethical issues and also fosters a culture of accountability and integrity. In this connection,
the draft Code of Conduct was placed before the Board along with the recommendations of the Audit Committee
and the same was approved by the Board.

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed Compliance with the Code for the Period 2024-25. A
separate declaration to this effect is made out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has adopted code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information and code of conduct as required under Regulation (8){1) and Regulation (3){1) of the SEBI {Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,

APPRECIATION

Your Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the co-operations received from its Bankers,
Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders during the year under review. Your Directors also
wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services of the executives, staff and
workers of the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board's Report and Management Discussion and Analysis Report contain certain
statements relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities,
laws and regulations.

Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regime, other statues, market
forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead to variation in actual results.

CONCLUSION

Your Company’s Board and employees are inspired by their vision of sustaining of the Company as a dynamic and
valuable Company through world class performance, creating enduring value for all stakeholders, including the
shareholders and the Indian Society. The Company is continuously engaged in upgrading strategic capability to
effectively address the challenge of growth in an increasingly competitive market. The vision of enlarging your
Company’s contribution to the Indian economy is manifest in the creation of unigue business models that foster
international competitiveness. Propelled by this vision and powered by the internal vitality, your Directors look
forward to the future with confidence.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 05/09/2025 sd/- sd/-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar Saboo Madan Singh Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

COMSEREVATION OF ENERGY, TECHMOLOGY ABSORPTION AMD FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

The company has 1 x 1.5 MW Wind power project wind turbine Location No: KLY-23 at Village Mamatkheda Site
Village Ringnod laora Tehsil, District Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh State for generating electricity. The produced

electricity from the said windmill plant is being sold to Madhya Fradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Company Limited.

Foreign Exchange Earning —Nil
Foreign Exchange Qutgo —Nil

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 05/09/2025 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar 5aboo Madan Singh Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The management of the Company is pleased to present its analysis on the Company’s performance and its outlook,
opportunities and challenges prepared in compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements as laid down in
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015,

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
The Company proposed to capture the growth potential in FMCG products by entering in retailing of the same.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Company continues to enjoy strong support from its promoters. As the Company has entered into the
manufacturing of spices and Industrial and edible 5alt arena, the business is poised to grow well in the future. The
Company is also planning to enter in the retail market by distribution of the FMCG products.

CHAILLENGES

Mow the Company is working on building its own brand image. The Company is also setting up its own network for
marketing and selling its spices and industrial salt. The brand building image will require recruitment of high quality
manpower and setting up of distribution network on large scale. The management is also contemplating of taking
steps for cost reduction in order to improve the financial position.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The company remains committed to ensure an effective internal control that provides assurance on the efficiency
of operations and security of assets. The company's well established and robust internal audit processes, both at
business and corporate levels, continuously monitor the effectiveness of the internal control environment across
the company and the status of compliance with operating systems, internal policies and regulatory requirements.

HUNMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Owt of all the resources available to the Company, Human Resource is the only asset that appreciates with time. In
its continued efforts to nurture the best human talent, during the year the management continued with its strategy
of imparting professional training to the executives and staff at various levels with a view to upgrade their
competency and remove all levels of inefficiency in order to make the Company more competitive. This is not a
luxury, but a necessity, if the Company has to survive in a globally competitive market, providing better product at
better cost requires additional efforts to develop skills and efficiency in the new appointees to face the challenge.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 05/09/2025 sd/- sd/-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar 5aboo Madan Singh Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Gowvernance is about promoting corporate fairness, transparency, accountability and integrity of the
management. It also aims to align, as nearly as possible, the interests of individuals, corporations and society and
thereby enhancing the stakeholders’ value. Good corporate governance practices have always been an integral part
of the Company’s philosophy. The commitment to good corporate governance practices predates the laws and
mandates of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (3EBI) and the stock exchanges through Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors are entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction
and performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and duties. The Board is
committed to protect the long-term interests of all our stakeholders, and considering this, it provides objectives
and prudent guidance to the management. The information relating to composition, committees etc. of the Board
is provided below:

* Composition
The Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Mon-Executive Directors, and is in conformity with the

regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The composition of the board as on 31 March, 2025 is as follows:

| Mo. of Directors | Percentage to Total MNo. of
Directors

Executive Directors 2 33.33
Non-Executive Non Independent 1 16.67
Directors

MNon-Executive Independent 3 50
Directors

TOTAL 6 100

» Board Meetings
During the year 2024-25, total 16 meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The intervening period
between two Board meetings Is well within the maximum gap as prescribed under Regulation 17 (2) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Details of the Board Meetings hald during the year are given below:

S.No. | Date of Meefing Board Strength No. of Directors Present
1! 01-04-2024 5] 6
2 27-04-2024 6 6
3. 29-04-2024 6 6
4. 17-05-2024 5] 6
5. 27-05-2024 B <]
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6 30-05-2024 6 6 |
7 11-06-2024 6 6 i
8. 09-07-2024 6 5 !
9. 12-08-2024 & 5 |
10. 06-09-2024 5 5 i
1. 13-11-2024 6 6 |
12. 25-11-2024 6 6 i
13, 20-12-2024 6 6

14, 28-12-2024 6 6

15. 30-01-2025 6 6 !
16. 08-02-2025 B 6 |

+ Meeting of Independent Directors

As required under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 27 of The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of
Independent Directors of the Company was held on 28 March, 2025 wherein Independent Directors reviewed
the performance of Mon-Independent Directors including chairman and the Board as a whole, taking into
account the views of Executive Directors and Mon-Executive Directors and assessed the adeguacy, guality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

The attendance details of the Independent Directors’ meeting are as follows:

Mame of Independent Director Meetings % of attendance
held | attended
Mr. Gajendra Singh Rathore 1 1 100
Mr. Kailash Chand Sharma 1 ] 1 100
Mr. Madan Singh Jain 1| % 100

» Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se
Mone of the Directors of the company are related to each other.

* Catepory and Attendance of Directors
Mone of the directors on the board hold directorship in more than twenty companies and in more than ten
public companies. Further none of them is a member of more than ten committees. The name and category of
Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25 and at the
last Annual General Meeting (AGM), the number of Directorships and Committee positions held by them in
other Public Limited Companies as on March 31, 2025, relationship between directors and their key skills are
given as follows:
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Mame of the

Mr. Girdhar

Mr. Mr. Kailash | Mr. Madan | Mr. Mr. Gopal | Mrs. Sangita
Director Gopal Gajendra Chand Singh Jain Rakesh Kumawat Devi
Saboo Singh Sharma Godha
Rathore
Mon- Mon-Executive
Executive Director
MNon- Non- Mon- Non-
itesais Managing Executive Executive Executive Executive Inde_per!de
Director Independen | Independen | Independent | Director nt Director
t Director t Director Director
Board
Meetings
attended 16 iG6 i5 B 16 2 15
during the
year
Attendance
at Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Mo Yes
last AGM
Number of
Directorship
in other 8 Z 1 2 . Z 2
Companies
Chairman in
Committee
Position held Mil 3 MIL 3 il il Nil
in other
Companies®
Membership
in Committee
Position held 1 NIL 1 3 Ml
in other il Mil
Companies®
Relationship
with other Mot related | Notrelated Nnt_rEFatEd Nnt_retated Mot
i : : to directors | to directors
directors and | to directors | to directors related to Mot related | Motrelated to
Key and KMPs and KMPs ant kM And EMEs directors to directors | directors and
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managerial
Personnel

and KMPs | and KMP= KMPs

Other directorships do not include directorships of companies incorporated outside India.

*Includes only Membership and Chairmanship in Audit and 5takeholder Relationship Committee.

# |nthe opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI Regulations and are
independent of the management.

# Mr. Gopal Eumawat resigoed on 12.08.2024.
# Mr. Madan Singh Jain appointed as Independent Director on 12.08.2024.

Shareholding of Directors as on March 31, 2025 is as under:

5. Mame of Director No. of shares held % of Paid-up Capital
No. |

E Mr. Girdhar Gopal Saboo 11303192 . 46.63%

2. Mr. Rakesh Godha MIL -

3. Mrs, Sangita Devi MIL -

4, Mr. Gajendra Singh Rathore MIL -

5. Mr. Kailash Chand Sharma NIL -

6. Mr. Madan Singh Jain MIL .' -

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has bean constituted as per Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines set
out in the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Reguirement) Regulations, 2015.
The terms of reference include:

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

To seek information from any employee/ records of the Company.

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice,

Overseeing of the Company's financial reporting procass and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management.

Compliance with accounting standards

Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements,
Any changes in accounting policies and practices.

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it is considered necessary.
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function.

Discussion with internal auditor regarding any significant findings and follow up thereon.

Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences regarding the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.
Any other item referred to it by the Board.

¥ Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not
exceed 120 days. The dates on which said meetings were held are as follows:
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4.

e 27.05.2024
» (05.08.2024
s 15.10.2024
= 30.01.2025

» The Composition of Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Mo. of Meetings
| Name Status Held Attended
irGajendra Singh  Rathore
lappointed w.e.f. 15.11.2023 Chairman 2 1
Mr. Kailash Chand Sharma Member

{Appointed as member w.e.f, 4 4
28.11.2023)
| Mr. Madan Singh Jain Member
(Appointed as member w.e.f. 2 2
28.11.2023)
Member
Wr. Gopal Kumawat ( resigned as member 2 2
w.e.f.12.08.2024)

Members of the Audit Committee have requisite financial and management expertise and have held or hold
senior positions in other reputed organization.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Compliance Officer are invited to attend and participate in the
meeting of the Committee. The Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

NOMINATON AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company had merged the existing Momination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in pursuant to the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the remuneration committee includes among others:

To review, assess and recommend to the Board the appointment of the executive and non-executive Directors
and the compensation payable to them.

To consider and recommend human resource policies relating to the compensation and performance
managemeant.

To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties

Two Momination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the year. The dates on which said
meatings were held are as follows:
» 30052024
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>

> 08.08.2024

The Composition of Momination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by its
members are given below:

- " MNo. of Meetings
ame s Held Attended
Mir. Gajendra Singh Rathore Chairman 5 5
[Mr. Gopal Kumawat (resigned|
w.e.f. 12.08.2024) st 2 2
M. Kailash Chand Sharma
Member 2 2

Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the performance of the
Independent Directors. The said criteria provides certain parameters like attendance, acquaintance with business,
communicate inter se board member, effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance with code of conduct,
vision and strategy, benchmark established by global peers etc. which is in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and guidelines.

5.

SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors constituted the shareholders/investors' grievance committee to look into redressal of
investors' complaints like share transfers, non-receipt of annual reports, issue of duplicate share certificate,
transfer and transmission of shares and other allied transactions. Its scope also includes delegating the powers
to the executives of Company/share transfer agents to process share transfers etc.

The Board has designated Ms. Prerna Sharma, Company Secretary, as the Compliance Officer of the Company
for the purpose of Investors' complaints/grievances.

One Shareholders/investors Grievance Committee Meetings were held during the year. The dates on which
said meetings were held are as follows:

» 08.08.2024
s 26.11.2024

The Composition of Shareholders/investors Grievance Committee and the details of meetings attended by its
members are given below:
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6.

Mo. of Meetings
Name Status Held Altended
Mr. Gajendra Singh Rathore
Chairman 5 5
vir. Gopal Kumawat (resigned Member
w.e.f. 12.08.2024) 1 1
IMr, Kailash Chand Sharma |
I Member . 5
Mr. Madan Singh Jain R
2 P
¥ Status of Investor Complaints
Mo. of Shareholders | No. of Shareholders | Complaints not | No. of Pending
Complaints received | Complaints resolved | resclved to the | Complaints
so far satisfaction of
shareholder
0 0 0 4]

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the 3EB| Listing Regulations, and the Governance Guidelines for Board Effectiveness
adopted by the Company. Formal letters of appointment have been issued to all Independent Directors,
outlining their roles, responsibilities, and terms of engagement.

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria
of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 18(1) (b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, in accordance with Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the
Independent Directors have affirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations that exist or
may reasonably be anticipated, which could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties as
Independent Directors of the Company

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the
Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management. No Independent Director had resigned
during the Financial Year 2024-25,
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7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. Annual General Meeting
The details of Annual General Meetings held in the last three years are given below:

AGMforFY. Date Time Venue Whether any
ended Special Resolution
passed

. . | through Video Conferencing

31-Mar-2024 25.09.2024 12:30P.M (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means Yes
| through Video Conferencing

_31-Mar—2ﬂ2? 28.(]9.1(]2% 01.00 F.M._ (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means Yes
. through Video Conferencing

31-Mar-2022 24.{]9.2132].' 04:30 P.M Yes

(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means

B. Extra Ordinary General Meeting during the year- 16.01.2025

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

In compliance with the reqguirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company regularly intimates un-audited as well as audited
financial results to the Stock Exchanges where shares of the Company are listed for the benefit of the investors,
immediately after they are taken on record by the Board. Moreover, the said results were put up on the BSE

website.

9. GENERAI SHAREHOILDERS INFORMATION

a. Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2024-25:

Date: Saturday, 27" September, 2025
Time: 04:30 PM
Venue: through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio

Visual Means {OAWM)
Last Date for receipt of Proxy Forms:  No reguirement for proxy as the meeting will be hold through
video conferencing.

b.Financial Calendar
The meetings of Board of Directors for approval of quarterly financial results during the financial year ended
31= March, 2025 were held on the following dates:
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Result for the quarter ending June 30, 2024 | July 08, 2024
Result for the quarter ending Sep 30, 2024 | November 05, 2024 |
Result for the quarter ending Dec 31, 2024 | lanuary 19, 2025 |
Audited Results for the current year ended March 31, 2025 | May 30, 2025

c. Book Closure Date

The Share Transfer Register of the Company shall remain closed from 227 September, 2025 to 287 September,
2025 [both days inclusive).

d.Dividend
Mo dividend being recommended by the Board during the year.

e.listing of Equity Shares in Stock Exchange
The share of the Company are Listed at
Bombay Stock Exchange
Phiroze leejecbhoy Towers,
Dalal 5treet, Mumbai- 400001
Phones: 91-22-22721233/4
The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE for the year ended 317 March, 2025.

f. Stock Code Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai — 531982,

g.Market Price Data

Month High Price Low Price ‘ Closing Price No. of Shares No. of trades |
Apr-24 42.45 2715 | 30.05 88,077 4091
May-24 3175 2405 | 2545 3,14,922 2810
June-24 29.90 23.16 | 27.43 222,409 1230
Jul-24 24.71 27.30 27.30 2,677,268 719
Aug-24 28.15 15,21 24.44 28,558,616 5411
Sep-24 20.30 22.62 23.81 24,606,025 6037
Oct-24 20.05 22, 5._5 25.60 22,55,953 be40
Nov-24 28.24 22.55 . 26.52 13,26,644 4242 |
Dec-24 37.60 2560 | 2886 44,45,370 12851 |
| Jan-25 34.58 24.13 25.98 17,035,785 5439 |
Feb-25 22.00 23.70 24.70 10,774,321 3971
Mar-25 29.90 2296 | 2276 11,12,202 4346

Source: BSE website
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h.REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
W/S Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd
Beetal house, 3rd floor, 99, Madangir
Behind Local Shopping Centre
Mear Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-62
Telephone no. 011 2996 1281/82
Fax: 0141-23658583

i. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

With a view to expedite the process of share transfers, the Board of Directors of the Company has delegated
the power of share transfer to Shareholders & Investor Grievances Committee. As on date all the work related
to the shares both held in physical and electronic form is handled by RTA. All correspondences are to be
directed to the RTA at the address mentioned above. The correspondences may also be sent at the Company's
address, which will be sent by the Company to RTA. Share transfer is normally affected within the maximum
period of 30 days from the date of receipt.

j- DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31* MARCH, 2025

SHARE HOLDING SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF AMOUNT

OF NOMINAL | NUMBER % TO TOTAL | SHARES IN RS. | % TO TOTAL
VALUE OF RS. 10

Upto 5000 4754 71.424 513412 5134120.00 2.1179
5001 to 10000 677 10171 555725 5557250.00 2.2924
10001 to 20000 433 6.581 B65625 BAE56250.00 | 2.7458
20001 to 30000 211 3.170 536867 5368670.00 2.2146
30001 to 40000 97 1.457 354885 3548850.00 1.4639
40001 to 50000 107 1.608 515886 5158860.00 | 21281
50001 to 100000 183 2.749 1378007 13780070.00 | 5.6844
100001 and 189 2.840 19721523 157215230.00 81.3529
above .

TOTAL 6656 100 24241930 242419300.00 100.00

k.SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31°T MARCH, 2025
SCRIP CODE:- 530461
SCRIP NAME:- SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED
SCRIP TYPE:- EQUITY
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summary of Shareholding

DESCRIPTION NO. OF | NO. OF SHARES | PERCENTAGE

HOLDER
INDIAN PROMOTER - INDIVIDUAL 1 | 11303192 | 46.63
CORPORATE BODIES -PROMOTER 3 80545 0.33
GROUP
TOTAL (A) a | 11383737 | 36.96
RESIDENT INDIVIDUAL 6446 | 5093250 | 3751
BODIES CORPORATE 44 | 3060571 | 12.63
CLEARING MEMBER 0 | 0.00 | 0.00
OTHER -HUF 116 398543 | 1.64
NON — RESIDENT INDIANS (NRis) 46 305429 1.76
TOTAL (B) 6652 | 12858103 | 53.04
TOTAL (A+B) 6656 | 24241930 | 100.00

|. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat segment and are available for trading in the
depository systems of both the National Securities Depository Limited {NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd. (CD5L). As on 31st March 2025, 24044360 equity shares of the Company forming 95.18% of the
share capital of the Company stand dematerialized.

m. LIGUIDITY OF SHARES
The Equity Shares of the Company have been regularly traded at Bombay Stock Exchange.

n. OUTSTANDING GDRs/WARRANTS AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS
The Company has not issued any GDRs/Warrants or any other instrument which is convertible into Equity

Shares of the Company.

0. PLANT LOCATIONS
Our company has plant located at Village-Badi Dhani, Bhartasar Road, Phalodi, Jodhpur {Raj.)

p. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
M/s Beetal Financial &Computer Services (P) Ltd
Beetal house, 3rd floor, 59, Madangir
Behind Local Shopping Centre
Mear Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-62
Telephone no. 011 7996 1281/82
Fax: 011 2996 1284
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Shareholders may also contact to:
The Compliance officer:

L-5, B —|l, Krishna Marg,

C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001, Rajasthan

10. OTHER DISCIOSURES:

Related Party Transaction:

The Company has entered into certain transactions with its Promoters, Directors and the Management related
parties in the ordinary course of business as approved by the shareholders; these transactions do not have any
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The Company has complied with the mandatory
requirements of Listing regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements), Regulations, 2015 as also with the requirements of Accounting Standard and
Companies Act, 2013.

Establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy:

Pursuant to Section 177{9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR] Regulations,
2015 the Company has a Whistle Blower policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees.
We affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

Vigil Mechanism /Whistle Blower Policy:

In compliance of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Amendment,
2018 the Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy that aims to provide a channel to the
Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the 3tandards, Code of Conduct or policy adopted by the Company from time to time. SFL is
committed to conduct its business in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations and the highest
standards of business ethics and to full and accurate disclosures, The Company believes in the conduct of the
affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism,
honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. Any actual or potential violation of these Standards, howsoever
insignificant or perceived as such, would be a matter of serious concern for the Company. The role of the
Directors, Employees in pointing out such violations of these Standards cannot be undermined.

Disclosure with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account:
The Company does not have any of its shares lying in demat/unclaimed suspense account.

Details of utilization of funds raised through Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions placements as
specified under Regulation 32 (74)

During the Year, the company has not made any Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions placements as
specified under Regulation 32 {7A). Hence, reporting is not applicable to the Company.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the
Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory Authority:

In compliance with Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors on its
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compliances forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Recommendations of any Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required:
All the mandatory recommendations of the committees are submitted to the Board for their approval and the
same have been accepted by the Board.

Details of total fees paid to Statutory Auditors:
A sum of Rs. 35,400/- was paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm /
network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part as fees for all the services rendered by him.

Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:
The Company's Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace is in line with the requirement of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013 (Prevention of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act) and Rules framed thereunder. Internal Complaints
Committees have also been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Company
conducts sessions for employees across the organization to build awareness amongst employees about the
Policy and the provisions of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act. The Company is
committed to providing a safe and conducive work environmeant to all of its employees and associates.

a)  Mo. of complaints filed during the Financial Year: NIL

b)  MNo. of Complaints disposed of during the Financial Year: NIL

c) Mo. of Complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year Nil

11. NON COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENTS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF SUB-PARAS (2) TO (10]
ABOVE, WITH REASONS THEREOF SHALIL BE DISCLOSED

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance Report of Sub-Fara (2)
To (9) above.

12. COMPLIANCE OF PART “E” OF SCHEDULE Il
The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of directors,
including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary has been placed before
the Board of Directors as and when required.

13. DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN
REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B} TO (1) OF SUB-REGULATION [2] OF REGULATION 46
The said Regulations are not applicable on the Company, yet company is complying with some of the provisions
of these regulations.

14. RECONCIUATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT
For each of the quarter in the financial year 2024-25, M/s Naredi Vinod & Associates, Company Secretaries,

laipur carried out secretarial audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with Mational Securities Depository
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15.

16.

17.

13.

19.

20.

Limited {N5DL) and Central Depository Services {India) Limited (CDSL) and total issued and listed capital. The
audit report confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in
physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the preparation of the financial statements, Company has adopted Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year Commencing from
01st April, 2024 as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The significant accounting policies which are
consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS

Certificate from the Secretarial Auditor, M/s Maredi Vinod & Associates, Company Secretaries, confirming
compliances with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, is attached to this Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Company has undertaken Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 which, inter alia, includes audit of
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made under the Act, Listing Regulations and
applicable Regulations prescribed by the Secwurities and Exchange Board of India and Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1959 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India.
The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of this Annual Report.

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATE

The Chairman and Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the company give annual certification
on financial reporting and internal controls on the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations.
The Annual Certificate given by the Chairman and Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer is published
in this report.

RECORDING MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee meeting. Draft minutes
are circulated to Board/Board Committee members for their comments. The minutes are entered in the
Minutes Book within 30 days from the conclusion of the meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct {the Code) applicable to all the employees and
Mon-executive Directors including Independent Directors. The Code is applicable to Mon-executive Directors
including Independent Directors to such extent as may be applicable to them depending on their roles and
responsibilities. The Code gives guidance and support needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of
law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. - Customer Value, Ownership Mind-set, Respect,
Integrity, One Team and Excellence.
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The Code has been circulated to Directors and Management Personnel, and its compliance is affirmed by them
annually. A declaration signed by the Company's Chairman is published in this Report.

21. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Code of Conduct
also includes code for practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 05/09/2025 sd/- sd/-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar Saboo Madan Singh Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00364750 DiN: 00301140
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ANNEXURE ‘E' TO BOARD’S REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule (2} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as on
March 31, 2025}

Particulars of contracts/arrangements made with related parties
This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in Sub- section {1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2025,
which were not at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31,
2025 are as follows:

MName of Related | Nature of Relationship | Duration of Contract | Salient Terms Amount
Party (In Lakhs)
Purchase of i

Goods & Services

Saboo Sodium | Common Directors Ongoing As  per RPT Policy | 983.872
Chloro Limited guidelines

Sale of Goods &

Services
Saboo Sodium | Common Directors Ongoing As per RPT  Policy | 1006.431
Chloro Limited guidelines
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date: 05/09/2025 sdj/- sd/-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar Saboo Madan Singh Jain

Managing Director Director
DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140
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NAREDI VINOD & ASSOCIATES FCS 11876
COMPANY SECRETARIES PCS 7994

To,

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2015]

The Members,

Spectrum Foods Limited

L-5, B-1I, Krishna Marg
C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001 (Rai.}

Ll

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Spectrum Foods Limited (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Spectrum Foods Limited books, papers, minute bools, forms and returns

filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report
that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t
March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject o
the reporting made hereinafter;

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by Spectrum Foods Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 315 March, 2025 according
to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the Rules made thereunder;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thersunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Net applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ["SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable on the Company: -
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f.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 & (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme] Guidelines, 1999; [Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 19958; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Except clause 47 )

6. The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

* Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,;
¢ The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange
with respect to Equity Shares listed on the Stock Exchange.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as Follows:

Sr. No Compliance Requirement : Deviations | Observations,/ Remarks of the |
(Regulations/ circulars / Practicing Company
guidelines including specific Secretary
clause) | |
NILL : NILL NILL
We further report that:

1) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

1) During the audit period of the company, There were following changes occurred in the

Directors/KMP
5. MNAME OF DIRECTOR/KMP DESIGNATION - DATE OF - DATE OF
No. APPOINTMENT CESSATION
; 3 Gopal Kumawat MNon-Executive -Non | 28/11/2023 12/08/2024
Independent Director
2. Ankita Sharma Company Secretary . 08/11/2023 29/05/2024
3 Preeti Sharma Company Secretary | 30/05/2024 | 25/11/2024
4. Nakul Sharma Company Secretary 25/11/2024 | 17/04/2025
5. Madan Singh Jain Non-Executive 12/08/2024
Independent Director
o. Prerna Sharma Cu.mpan}r Secretary 23;‘“[’5;’2325 -

3) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent by hand/ E mail at least seven days in advance or at a shorter notice
subject to the compliances under the Companies Act 2013 and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

Date: 28/05/2025 For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Place: Jaipur Company Secretaries

5d/-
(Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Prop.
FC511876
CP No. 7994
Peer Review: 2814/2022
UDIN number FO11876G000474250

MNote: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as' Anmexure' and forms an
integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

spectrum Foods Limited

L-5, B-11, Krishna Marg
C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001 (Raj.])

We have appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for conducting Secretarial Audit as per provision of
Companies Act 2013 for Financial Year 2024-25, we would like to inform that our report of even date is to be
read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

Date: 28/05/2025 For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Place: Jaipur Company Secretaries

5d/-
(Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Prop.
FC511876
CP No. 7994
Peer Review: 2814 /2022
UDIN number FO11876G000474250
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NAREDI VINOD & ASSOCIATES FC5 11876
COMPANY SECRETARIES PCS 7994

The Members,

Spectrum Foods Limited

L-5, B-II, Krishna Marg
C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001 (Raj.)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Spectrum Foods Limited for the year
ended on 31st March, 2025 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) regulation, 2015.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation therecf adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI
(LODR) regulation, 2015.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the company as per the
records maintained by the shareholders / Investors grievance committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 28/05/2025 For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Place: Jaipur Company Secretaries
5d/-
(Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Prop.
FC511876
CP No. 7994

Peer Review: 2814/2022
UDIN number FO11876G000474360

56, RAMESHWAR DHANM, MURLIPURA, JATPUR (RAJ)
Cell No: 2001295810, 141-2420180 e-mail: vinodnaredif@ GMATL.COM
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NAREDI VINOD & ASSOCIATES FC5 11876
COMPANY SECRETARIES PC57994

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause [10] (i) of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]

To

The Members,

Spectrum Foods Limited

L-5, B-IL, Krishna Marg
C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001 (Raj.)

We have examined the refevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Spectrum Foods Limited having
CIN: L15499R[1934PLCO0B01E and having registered office L-5, B-IL Krishna Marg C-Scheme, Jaipur-302001 (Raj.) (hereinafter referred to as "the
Company’). produced before mefus by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities Exchange Beard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations,
2015,

It cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number [DIN) status at the
portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnizshed to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of
the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such other Statutory Authority.

DIN i Name [ Begin date End Date
00364750 GIRDHAR GOPAL SABOD 01/10/2012
DE540738 RAKESH GODHA | 12/08/2013
09161444 SANGITA DEVI 30/06/2021
10328268 GAJENDRA SINGH RATHORE 15/11/2023
10328689 i GOPAL KUMAWAT 28/11/2023 | 12708 /2024
10393593 | HAILASH CHAND SHARMA 28/11/2023
09301140 ! MADAN SINGH JAIN ' 12/08/2024
Date: 28/05,/2025 For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Place: Jaipur Company Secretaries
Sd/-
(Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Prop.
FC5 11876
CP No. 7994

Peer Review: 2814 /2022
UDIN number FO11876G000474338

56, RAMESHWAR DHAM. MURLIPURA, JATPUR (RAJ)
Cell No: 2001295810, 141-2420180 e-mail: vinodnaredi@gmail.com
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel.

| confirm that the Company has, in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2025, received from the members
of the Board and the senior management team of the Company, a declaration of compliance with the Code of
Conduct as applicable to them.

Place: Jaipur sd/-
Date: 05.09.2025 Girdhar Saboo
(Chairman)
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CERTIFICATE BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

To,
The Board of Directors
Spectrum Foods Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Spectrum
Foods Limited ("the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief cartify that:

a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 317
March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any
statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c. We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

d. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of
the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

8. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit
Committee:

i.  significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii.  significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
iii.  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

sd/- sd/f-
Place: Jaipur Girdhar Sabhoo Kailash Chand Sharma
Date: 05.09.2025 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00364750
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To,

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

THE SHAREHOLDERS,
SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED,
JAIPUR

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of 3 Directors (Non-Executive Independent Directors)
of the Company. The Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, and has
been vested with all the powers necessary to effectively discharge its responsibilities.

The committee has primary responsibiiity for the financial statements and reporting process including the
systems of internal controls. During the year, the Committee discussed with the Company’'s auditors about the
overall scope and plans for their audit. The Committee also discussed the result of their examination, their
evaluation of the Company’'s internal controls and the overall quality of the Company’'s financial reporting.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the committee has reviewed and discussed the Company’s audited
financial statements with the management. Relying on the review and discussions with the management and
the auditors, the Audit Committee believes that the Company’s financial statements are fairly presented in all
material aspects,

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics has the mechanism whereby no personnel intending to
make a complaint relating to Securities and financial reporting shall be denied access to the Audit Commitiee.

sd/-

Place: Jaipur Gajendra Singh Rathore
Date: 05.09.2025 [Chairman)

Audit Committee
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R. P KHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Spectrum Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial

Statements Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Spectrum Foods Limited (“the Company’) ("the
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the standalone statement
of profit and loss, and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”) in the manner so reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, profit & loss and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the 5tandalone Financial Statements section of cur report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Kev Audit Matters (continued) Description of Keyv Audit Matter
Valuation of tax positions
Note 30(a) to the standalone financial statements

The kev andit matter |Htm' the matter was addressed in our audit
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Revenue Recognition

The company is in the business of Salt,
Refinery  Hospitality, Renewable
Energy,

The Company has various types of

Ccustomers such as mdustrial
commercial, non-commercial. domestic
and others. Revenue from sale of salt 15
considered as key audit matter as there
15 a risk of accuracy of recognition and
measurement of salt in the Standalone

Financial Statements:

A. Different  pricing
different types

structure  for

of customers and
frequency of price change

B. Volumimous number of customers

C. Estimating unbilled revenue at the
year end

Use of Billing Software of the Company

Our approach was a combination of test of internal
controls analytical and substantive procedures which
mcluded the following —

— Ewvaluated the design of Internal Control.

— For evaluation of operative effectivensss of
Internal Control:

—Verified Samples of invoices with agreements
executed with the customers. accuracy of pricing,
consumption guantity, tax amount of invoiwces of
various categories of customers.

—Visited site to understand the actual operation.

Further reconciled sale with various returns filed for
VAT, G5T and Excise duty

Internal Control System: Sales and
Debtors Management:
We have done manual testing of the

software (e.g., ra1sing invoices for few
accounts) manually.

Data downloaded from the
software  (recovery, and
amounts) i1s under reconciliation wit
financial books.

overdue

billing

We have relied on the management report, while
venfying revenue of Sales which was provided in the
last financial vear.

The Data of Billing Software regarding recovery and
Overdue amounts are under reconciliation and

omestic Debtors are taken as per Books without
confirmation due to huge number.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’'s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therson.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’'s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and cash flows statement of the Company in
gccordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 54s will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

* (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

= (Conclude on the appropriateness of managements and Board of Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

* (A} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B".

Based on our examination, the company, has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility except that the audit trail feature of BUSY software used by the
company to maintain Books of Account records did not operate throughout the 2024-25.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has not disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its
financial statement and in its Notes to Accounts.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
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("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever ["Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e) contain any
material mis- statement.

. The no dividend paid by the Company during the current year in accordance with section 123
of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of dividend, the Board of
Directors of the Company have not proposed final dividend for the current year .

. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16] of the
Act:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limits laid down under section 157 of the Act.

For M/s R.P.Khandelwal & Associates
Chartered Accountant
(Firm Registration No. 001795C)

S5d/-
E.P Khandelwal
Partner
(Membership No.423822)
Place: Jaipur UDIN: 254235822BMIKSZ2587

Date: 29.05.2025
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report the following:

. ia) (&) The Company has not maintained proper records and registers showing full
particulars, including guantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

® According to the information and explanations given to us, The management of the
Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years as explained by the management. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

. The Company had immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, clause 3{i}{c) of the Order is applicable. Proper records and registers has
not maintained therefore we can not give our favourable comments on its ownership

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

. {a) The Company is 3 manufacturing company; Accordingly, it holds physical inventories in
the form of raw material and WIP and accordingly, clause 3(ii){a) of the Order is
applicable. According to the information and explanations given to us inventory has
been physically verified by the management. Mo 5tock registered and other related
records has been maintained by the company. Quantitative Details of Purchase of raw
material and material consumed has not been verified by us.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of the security of current assets at any point of time during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3{ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments in shares
of other companies. As per the explanation provided to us. The Company had provided
guarantees, 5ame is stated in the financial statement.

* (A) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans to subsidiaries/related parties as

below:
Particulars Loans {(Rs. In Lacs)
\Ap eregate amount during the year- related’ parties™® 200.00
IEalancE outstanding ag &t the balance shest date—related parties™ 200.00
. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit

proceduras conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the recards of the Company, in our opinion, in the case of loans and
advances in the nature of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has not been stipulated.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of
loans granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the over due's of existing loans or advances in the nature of
loans given to same parties.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) and the Company has not provided any security as specified under Section 186
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of the Act. Further, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186
of the Act in relation to loans given, guarantees provided and investments made.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

¥ {a)

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and

Value added tax during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues excluding G5T, have
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, other than G5T, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ 5tate Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period
of mare than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Value Added Tax or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, except as mentionad below:

Name of the statue i MNature of does A Amount*® Period to which Forum where
| { Rs. In millions the amount dispute
relates iz
{Financial Year pending
Income ' ]
Tax Act, Incame 155647 AY 15-16 Pending
fax Before
&0
Income Income 145870 ALY 19-20 Pending
Tax Act, tax before

AD
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. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,

. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of
loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries{Except
normal business transaction), as defined in the Act. The Company does hold investment in
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as definaed under the Act).

. {a) The Company has raised right issue of Equity Shares of 19188506 at a Price of Rs.20/-
each Including Share premium of Rs.10/- each and 205038 Partly paid equity shares on Right
issue at a Price of Price of Rs.20/- each Including Share premium of Rs.10/- paid by way of
Right issue to existing share holders,the call money on the partly paid shares will be called later
on by the company as per clause applicable 3(x){a) of the Order..

. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

. (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
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the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section

. {12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

. We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

* According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company s not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

* |n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
and MNotes to Accounts as required by the applicable accounting standards.

. (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

. Internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit has not been

provided to us.

* |nour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered inte any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

. {a) The Company is not required to be registered under 3ection 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3{xvi}{a) and 3(xvi}{b) of the Order are not applicable.

. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CICs.

* The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

* There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

* According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
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information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3{xx){a) and 3{xx¢)(b) of the Order are not applicable
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone finamcial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A}(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Spectrum Foods Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Nota").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. Thase responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
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weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
ctatements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements include those policies and procedures that provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or proceduras may deteriorate.

For M/s R.P.Khandelwal & Associates
Chartered Accountant
(Firm Registration No. 001795C)

Sd/-
R. P Khandelwal
Partner
{Membership No.423822)
Place: Jaipur UDIN: 25423822BMIKSZ.2587
Date: 29.05.2025
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SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED
CIN : L15499R11994PLC00B016
L-5, IL, KRISHNA MARG, C- SCHEME, JAIPUR-302001

Balance Sheet as at 21st March, 2025

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025 (Rs. in lakhs) |
Not
e 31.03. 31.03.
No. 2025 2024 |
{Amount {Amount
in Rs.) in fs.}) |
II. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and eguipment and Intangible assets 1.0
(ii)Intengible Assets 11 644.84 915.65
(ii) Capital work-in-progress 1.2 1.055.14 248.10
(b) Mon-current investments 2.0
(i) Investments 2.1 231,93 17.62
(ii} Other Financial Assets 2.2 1,300.00
(c} Other Non-Current Assets 3 46.25 33.82
{2) Current assets
(a) Current Investment 22
(a) Inventories 4 130.38 20648
{b) Trade receivables 5 430.27 108.70
(c) Cash and cash eguivalents 6.1 240 0.39
Bank balances other than (c) above 6.2
{(d) Other Current Assets 71 644.10 39.95
(e) Short-term loans and advances | ‘72 376.15 4.77
Total 4,861.45 1,394.60

LEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder's funds

(a) Share capital & 2:413.94 484.84

(b) Surplus g 158858 | (352.90)

(2) Non-current liabilities

{a) Long-term borrowings 10 78.56 96.56

(a) Deferred tax liability (net) 11 151.25 15843
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Notes referred to above from an integral part of the Financial Statements,

Notes referred to above form an integral part of Financial Statements

(3) Current liabilities |
(a) Short Term Borrowings 32 ) Thae [
(b) Trade payables 13 - - [
(&) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 131 - B |
and small enterprises; and |
(B) total cutstanding dues of creditors other than 13.2 39.10 2741 |
.m}-.cm enferﬁﬁses; an& s.z.nall .éhfe.l.'p-rises | | 0 - e |
(c) Other current liabilities 14 3648.03 828.09 |
other financial liabilities 15 - -]
{d) Short-term provisions 15 23.89 7279 |
Total 486145 | 1,394.60 |
|

Significant Accounting Policies | 1 |
|

|

As per our report of even date attached

Date: 20.05.2025

For :R.P.EHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES For & on behalf of the Board of Directors |
Chartered Accountants |
Sd/- SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED |
R.P.EHANDELWAL 5d/- [ Sd/- |
Partner Managing Director Director |
M.No.: 071002 Girdhar Saboo Madan Singh Jain |
FRN: 001795C DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140 |

Place : Jaipur
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SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

CIN : L15499R11994PLC0O03016

L-5,II,KRISHNA MARG, C- SCHEME, JAIPUR-302001
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

PROFIT & LOSS ACCCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note 31.3.2025 31.3.2024
No (AmountinRs) | (AmountinRs.)

(I} Revenue from operations i7 2,207.65 218342
{IT} Other Income i7 48.72 29,17
IIL. Total Income (I + II) 2.256.37 2,212,590
IV.  Expenses:
Cost of material Consumed 18 1,951.14 142992
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 19 - -
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employvee benefit expense 20 51.74 66.64
Financial costs 21 6.19 6.13
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 8095 101.14
Manufacturing & Direct Exp. 24 63.80 207.27
Other expenses 244 80.73 187.49
Total Expenses 2,245.55 1,908.58
V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and

extraordinary items & tax (I11I-IV) 10.82 214.01
VI. Exceptional items -
ViL E:l;“j_: ’E}tﬁ}:ﬁfﬁm exkractdinary 10.82 214.01
VIIL Extraordinary items - -
IX. Profit and Loss before tax 10.82 21401
X. LessIncome Tax expense:

(1) Current Tax 271 5.62 72.79

(2) Deferred Tax 272 717 851
XL Profit {Loss) for the period from 12.37 132.71

continuing operations (IX-X])

Profit/{Loss) for the period 12.37 13271
Xll.  Profit/{Loss) for the period 12.37 132.71
Brought forward from Prev. year (510.28) (642.99)
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Balance carried forward to next year (497.51) (510.28) ‘
Earning per equity share: 26 [
Face value per equity shares Rs. 5/- fully |

paid up.

Basic 0.26 274 |
Diluted 0.26 274 |_
Notes referred to above form an integral part of Financial Statements |
[ | |
As per our report of even date attached |
For :R.P.KHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES For & on behalf of the Board of Directors |
Chartered Accountants |
Sdf- SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED |
R.P.EHANDELWAL 5d/- Sd/- I
Partner Managing Director Director |
M.No.: 071002 Girdhar Saboo Madan Singh Jain |
FRN: 001725C DIN: 00364750 DIN: 09301140 [
|
|

Place : Jaipur
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SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

CIN : L15499R11994PLCO08016
L-5,II KRISHMA MARG, C- SCHEME, JAIPUR-302001

Balance Sheet as at 21st March, 2025

Particulars For the Year For the vear
ended ended
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
A | CASHFLOW FROM OPEEATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 12.37 1327
Finance Cost 6.19 6.13
Exceptional cost Prel.exp.wio. = =
Dreferred tax (7.1T) 851
Income fax 5.62 7270
Deepreciation and amortization expense §9.95 101.14
Owperating profit [ (loss) before working capital changes 106.96 321.28
Changes in working capital:
Change in Current Liabilites
Increase /{ Decrease) m Trade Pavables 11.59 (536.63)
Increase /{ Dectease) m Bomowings (7938} 7938
Increase { Decrease) i Other financial liabilihes E =
Increaze  Decrease) m Other current liabilities (260.03) 31462
Increaze ([ Decrease) m Other Mon-current liakalmies
Inerease /{ Decrease) m Provisions (except IT) (48.78) 4704
Total (376.52) (115.59)
fﬁ:ange in current Assets
(Increase) Decreasze in Inventory 76.10 (17.90)
(Increaze) Decreaze in Trade receivables (321.37) 1842
{Tnereaze)/ Decreaze in Others current financial assets (371.38) T2.77
(Increase) Decrease in Other current assets 24y (232
(Increase) ' Decreaze m Non current Financial Assets-mvestment (1.514.31) 12367
Total (2,143 60) 194 54
Net change (2,413.16) 404.10
CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,413.16) 404.10
Less: Taxes paid 1.55 72.79
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NET CASHFLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2.414.71) 33131
B | CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Inerease) [ Decreaze m Long Term Loans & Advances - -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (811.13) 27734
(Increaze) decreasze to defemed tax - =
Procesds From Salezwritten off of Fixed Assetz - -
NET CASHFLOW FROAM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (811.13) 277.4
C | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procurement of capatal find 383820 -
Fepayment of Bommowmgs -20.00 1943
Capital Subsidy under TUF - -
Interest paid (6.1%) 6.13
NET CASHTLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3832.01 25,56
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 606.17 1341
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning period 40,34 11.93
Cash and Caszh equivalents at end of period 646.50 40.34
D | Cash and Cash eguivalents comprize of
Cazh on hand 1.40 0.39
Balances with banks
In current accounts 644.10 39.05
Total 646.50 40.34

This Cash Flow Statement has been prepared as per “Indirect Method” as prescnbed by Accounting Standard -3
{revised) "Cash Flow Statements®

As per our report of even date For & On Behalf of the Boan
For :RP.KHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

EP.KHANDELWAL GIEDHAR SABOO
M. Np.: 071002 AMANAGING DIRECTOR
UDIN: 25423822BAMIKSYER 70 DIN : 00364750

Darte:- 20.05.2025
Place:- Jaipur
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% R.P KHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

B.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting:-

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) including the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best kmowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Revenue Recognition: -
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on accrual basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured,

Property, Plant & Equipment :-

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangible assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition
including taxes, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisifion and installation of the
concerned assets less depreciation till date.

Company has adopted cost model for all class of items of Property Plant and Equipment.

Fized Asset register has not been maintained by the Company. Physical Verification of Fixed assets is done
by the management as certified.

D PR
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written down Value

(WDV) Method as per companies Act 2013. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

All fixed assets are fully depreciated in the year of installation or Purchase. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is
charged as per Companies Act 2013
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10,

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets,
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the asset. No Impairment has done during the yvear as certified by the
management.

If impaired, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

Foreign currency Transactions: -

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely approximating
the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Liahilities and receivables in foreign currency are restated at the
vear-end exchange rates, All exchange rate differences arising from conversion in terms of the above are
included in the statement of profit and loss.

Investments :-

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the
date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are
classified as non-current investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds will
be charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories :-

Inventories are valued as under:-

1. Inventories 2 Lower of cost or net realizable value
2. Scrap : At net realizable value.

Stock registered and other related records has been maintained by the company. Quantitative Details and
Valuation of Purchase of raw material and material consumed has been certified by the management as
provided to auditors.

Borrowing cost:-

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of the qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A gualifying assets is one that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended uses or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue
in the year of incurrence. The amount of borrowing cest capitalized during the year is “Nil"”

The company has not taken any policy for the payment of gratuity. The gratuity has not been provided in
books on accrual basis. The leave encashment is not accounted in the books.

Company has not register under The Employees’ Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1952,
and Gratuity Act.
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11. Taxes on Income;:-

12.

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, The deferred tax for timing differences between the book
and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws that have been substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising from timing differences are recognized to
the extent there is virtual certainty with convincing evidence that these would be realized in future. At
each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed to reassure realization.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:- (A5-29)

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provision for Audit Fees and ROC Filing Charges has not been incorporated in the books.

Contingent Liahilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for:-

{i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
COMmpany or

(ii] Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be reguired fo settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be
made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the recognition of the

income that may never be realized.

General;

Except wherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles
and have been consistently applied.

(B) Notes on Financial Statements

:

The 551 status of the creditors is not known to the Company hence the information is not given.

Salaries includes directors remuneration Rs.13 lacs (Previous Year Rs.18.00lacs) and rent paid to Director
is Rs,6.00Lacs (Pre.Yr.Rs.6.00Lacs)

Trade receivables, Trade pavables, Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans have been taken at their book
value subject to confirmation and reconciliation. All the Unsecured Loans (Liability) taken on interest free.
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4,

Payments to Auditors: .
Auditors Remuneration 2024-25 | 2023-24
Statuary Audit fees ; 35400.00 :- 35400.00
Tax Audit Fees ; 11800.00 | 11800.00
Total | 47200.00 | 47200..00

No Provision for Statuary Audit Fees, Tax Audit fees and GST Audit Fees had been made during the year.

5.Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any security.

6.

No provision for retirement benefits has been made, in view of accounting policy. The impact of the same
on Profit & Loss is not determined.

Advance received from others includes advances received from concerns in which directors are

interested: (Bs. in lakhs)

Name of Concern Current Year Previous Year
| Closing Balance | Closing Balance

Aditya saboo | il | 13.00
Anoushka Saboo | Nil | 55.00
Archana Saboo | Nil f Nil
Samskara Resort ' Nil | Nil
Girdhar Gopal Saboo , il : 6641
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8. Advance to others includes advances to concerns in which Company itself and directors are interested:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Name of Concern Current Year Previous Year
Closing Balance Closing Balance

Saboo sodium & Chloride ltd.(Purchase/sales 549.74 785.24

Sivana Resorts Pvt Ltd 200.00 0.00

8. Related Party disclosure as identified by the company as mentioned under Sec 188 of Companies Act 2013
and other related Laws.

(A) Related Parties and their Relationship

(I} Eey Management Personnel

1. Mr, Girdhar Gopal Saboo-MD
2. Ms.Eshita Dixit- CS
3. Mr Kailash Chand Sharma- CFQ

(I} Relative of Key Management Personnel

1. Nil

10. Company has made no provision in respect of penalty imposed during the year. No penalty has imposed
during the year on pending litigations.

11. Additional Regulatory Information/disclosures as required by General Instructions to Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable to the Company.

12, % of imported & indigenous raw material Consumed & consumables

Particulars 24-25 23-24
Yo Amount | B4 | Amount
Imported 0% | 0.00 095 | 0%

Indigenous 100% | 1951.14 100% | 1429.92
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13. Value of Imports
Raw Material Nil Nil
Finished Goods Nil Nil
14, Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
15, Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

16. Previous year figures have been regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to notes 1

In terms of Our Separate Audit Report of Even Date Attached.

For :R.P.KHANDELWAL & ASSOCIATES

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED
Firm Reg. No.001795C

Sd/- 5d/- | sq/-

RONAK KHANDELWAL Managing Director | Director
Partner Girdhar Saboo | Rakesh Godha
M.No.: 423822 DIN: 00364750 | DIN: 08540738

Date: 29.05.2025

Place : Jaipur
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SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

CIN : L15499R11994PLCD0E016

L-5,IL KRISHNA MARLG, C- SCHEME, JAIPUR-202001
Balance Sheet as at 21st March, 2025

MNotes Forming Part of Balance Sheet

Note 10.2 : Capital Work in Progress E:f:h:;:
. Sr. Bt 31st March, | 31st March,
No. 2025 2024
1 Capital work in progress-Building 0.00 0.00
2 Capital work in progress-Plant &Machinery 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
Note 11 : Non current investment
Sr. . 31st March, 31st March, |
No. Particulars 2025 2024
Quoted investments:-in Equity Shares 151.93 17.62
Equity based mutual fund MNIL MNIL
UnQuoted investments:-in Equity Shares 80.00 0.00
Total 231.93 17.62
All above investments are carried at cost
11.1 Other disclosures
(a} Aggregate cost of quoted investment NIL NIL
Aggregate market value of quoted investments NIL MNIL
(b Aggregate amount of unguoted investments NIL MIL
{c) Aggregate provision for diminution in value of NIL MNIL
investment MNIL NIL
Note 12 : CURRENT ASSEST-INVESTMENTS
Sr. Particul 31st March, 31st March,
No. _ articuiars 2025 2024
Quoted investments:-in Equity Shares
1 Trade Investmment in Certificate of Deposits
In IDFC Bank 400.00
In AU Bank o00.00
| Total 1300.00 0.00

51
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SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

Note 13 : Long term loans and advances
Sr. Z 31st March, 31st March,
MNoO. Particulars 2025 2024
1) | Security deposit 43.47 4.68
1) TDS and Adv,Taxes 1.22 4,37
111} Other loans & advances-Pre paid Ins. 1.03 24.77
v Pre Operative Exp. 0.43
V) Tcs Receiveable 0.11
Total 46.25 33.82
Note 14 : Deferred Tax Assets
Sr. . 31st March, 31st March,
No. Particulars 2025 2024
T Deferred tax assets (nat) -158.43 -158.43
Total (158.43) (158)
Note 15 : Inventories®
Sr. . 31st March, 31st March,
No. Particulars 2025 2024
1 Raw material 130.38 206.48
2 Packing Material
3 Finished goods
4 Consumables Stores
5 Shares
=valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
Total 130.38 206.48
Note 16 : Trade receivables
Sr. c 31st March, 31st March,
No. Particulars 2025 2024
i Outstanding for more than six months
a) Secured, considered good
b} Unsecured, considered good 41.86 32.19
c) Doubtful
2 Others
a) Secured, considered good -
b} Unsecured, considered good 388.40 76.51
c) Doubtful
Total 430.27 108.70




ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

for following periods from due datd]

Less than & & months -1
Particulars months year
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 383.40 41.86

(1} Undisputed Trade receivables considered doubtful

{iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good

{iv] Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024

for following periods from due datd

Lessthan & & months -1
Particulars months year
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 76.51 32.19
(i} Undispufed Trade receivables -considered doubtful
{iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good - -
{iv] Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - -
Note 15 : Cash and bank balances (Rs. in Lakhs)
% I1st March, 31st March,
Sr. No. Particulars o 2094
i5.1 |Cash and cash eguivalent 2.40 0.39
Sub total (A) 2.40 0.39
15.2 |Bank balances - current accounts
- In Fixed Deposit - 50.00
- In Curmrent Account and Deposit Afc 644,10 {10.05)
Sub total (B) 644.10 39.95
Total[A + B ] 646.50 40.34
Note 16. : Short terms loans and advances {Rs. in Lakhs)
R 31st March, | 31st March,
Sr. No. Particulars s A
Loans and Advance to Related Parties 200.00
Other advances recoverale in cash or in kinds 176.15 4.77
Total 376.15 4.77
Note 16.1 : Short terms loans and advances {Rs. in Lakhs)
= 31st March, 31st March,
Sr. No. Particulars sl A
Others 0.00 0.00

Total
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Note 8 :- Share capital (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 315;':;5:5r|:h, 315;{]2?:':'“
Authorised share capital 2500.00 2500.00

25000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value
Prev.year 25000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value

Issued share capital 2500.00 2500.00
4848386 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value 484,84 484.84
Subscribed & paid-up share capital
4848385 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value 484,84 484.84
19188506 Right Issue of Rs.10/-issued at apr 1918.85
24241930 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value
205038 partly paid Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each at par value 10.25
Prev.yr.4848386 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each at par value
Total share capital 2413.94 484.84
MNote 8.1 : Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding is set out below:
. 31st March, | 31st March,

Particulars 3025 2024
Egquity shares at the beginning of the yvear 484.84 484.84
Add:Right issue of Fully paid up Shares 19188506@ 10/- at par 1918.85 0.00
Add:Right issue of partly paid up Shares 205038@5/- at par 10.25 -
Equity shares at the end of the year 2413.94 484.84

Mote 8.2 : The Company has only one dass of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per sk

Hote 8.3 : There is right issue of shares during the year.

MHote 8.4 : The Company has only one dass of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per sk
MHote 8.5 : There is change in the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Mote 8.6 : There is change in the pattern of shareholding during the year. It is same as the last year.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 3ist March 2025 Eh:: -
Sr. No. Promoter Name No. of %o of total duﬁngg
e Shares™* shares™* e
Share holding pattern and details { holding more than 5% of total shares)
Shareholder % Holding No.of shares
1 Guirdhar Saboo 46,63 11303192 46.63% 3.39%
2 Saboo sodivm & chlom kkd 5.70 1383664 5.70% 5.70%
Total 532.33%
Reconcilation of Number of Shares Outstanding
Equity Shares at the Beginning of the year 4348386
Addition/deletion during the year 1988506
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Equity Shares at the end of the year | 24036892
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year ending 31st March 2024 Eh::ge
No. of % of total >
5r. No. Promoter Mame Shares** i d:_nn-g
| Guirdhar Saboo 41,24 1999343 1995343  41.24% 5.39%:
2 Mawa Hotel B Resorts pve Ltd, 21.68 1051211 1051211 21.68% 21.68%
3 Tiger Szt Pyt fed. 21.09 10225923 1022923  21.00% 21.009%
Total 4073476 84.01%

Note 9: Surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March, | 31st March,

2025 2024
Security Premium Account 157.38 157.38
At the beginning of the year - -
Add; Additions durning the yvear 1,929.10
Less: withdrawals/transfer
Balance at the vear end 2,086.49 157.38
Capital Reserve - -
profit & loss (Surplus) - -
At the beginning of the year (510.28) (642.99)
Addf{Less): Additions dunng the vear 12.37 132.71
{(497.91) (510.28)
Total 1,588.58 (352.90)
Note 10 : Long term borrowings-Seciured Loan Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

3ist March, | 31st March,

2025 2024

SBI - Term loan for Wid Mill Ratlam) - -
AU Small Finance Bank 26.56 46.56

SBI - Term loan for GECL - -

SBI - GECL loan - -
Subsidy from VCA 50.00 50.00

Loans and advances from related parties: - -
TOTAL -A 76.56 96.56

MNote 10A : Long term borrowings-Unseciured Loan

R 31st March, | 31st March,
Particalars 2025 2024
Loan from Directors - 79.38
Loan from Members and relatives -
Loan from Body Corporate
TOTAL-B - 79.38
TOTAL-A+B 76.56 175.94
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MNote 11: Deferred tax liability Rs. in Lakhs)
. 31st March, | 31st March,
Particulars 3025 2024
Cpening balance 158.43 149.92
Total reversible timing difference in books maintained as per
Companies Act 2013
Depreciation as per Compames Act 2013 89.55 101.14
Total reversible timing difference in books maintained as per
Income Tax Act 1961
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 1961 61.45 70.55
Met reversible timing difference (1) - (2) 28.50 30.58
Deferred tax liab/asset recognised for the year (7.17) 8.51
Add : Deferred tax income/{expense)
Total 151.25 158.43
Note 12 : Short Term Borrowings {Rs. in Lakhs)
o 31st March, | 31ist March,
Certcaiars 2025 2024
Working Captital Loan repayable on demand from Banks :
Securad
1 State Bank of India - Cash Cradit Limit - 2
Total = =
Note 13 : Trade payables Rs. in Lakhs)
2 21st March, | 31st March,
Patbcaes 2025 2024
13.1 |Creditors for Goods- dues of micro enterprises and small enterprig = =
13.2 |Creditors for Goods- dues of otherthan micro enterprises and smy 33.70 27.41
Creditors for capital Goods- ..d.o.. 5.40
Total 39.10 27.41

Mote 13.3 : Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who gualify under the definition of

micre and small enterpnses, as defined under the Micoro,

Small and Medium Enterpnses

Development Act 2006, Since no intimation has been recewed from the suppliers regarding
their status under the =aid Act as at 31st March 2021, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid
as at the year end, if any, have not been fumished. In the opinion of the management, the
impact of interest,  any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is

not expected to be matenal,



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Trade= Payables ageing scheduls: As at 31st March, 2025

SPECTRUM FOODS LIMITED

{Ra. In Lakns)
Cutsanding for feliowlng pericds from dus dals of
Parficulars pEymant
La=szthzn 1
yaar 1-2 years 2.3 years Tatz!
| MEME
([il] Dthare 38,10 510
[iilj Dispuies dues MIME 3
[tv] Disputed duss - Oinars
Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31sk March 2024 (R In Lakng)
OUEEnGing for Tlowing Faroge rom oo
date of payment
Lees ihan 1 1-2 yoars 2-3 years Toltzl
Partcuiars. Jfear
1) MEME
|} CEhare - =
i1} DiepUid dus s MSHE
(v} Disputed duwes - ihars
Mote” A EEN'."'Q' 55 Dean consigersd rom e oste of IERsschion
Note 14 : Other Current Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs)
. 31st March, | 31st March,
Particulars 3025 2024
Statutory Dues:
Other Dues: GST 10.09 10.09
TDS Payable 8.21 7.78
Other Liabilities/Adv.from Customers 549,74 807.42
Other out standing biab. 0.00 2.759
Total 568.03 828.09
Note 15 : Outstanding Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs)
_ 31st March, | 31st March,
Particulars 2025 2024
Outstanding habilties,/Deposit from customers 0.00 0.00
Other out standing Bab. 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
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MNote 16 : Short Term Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs)
R 31st March, | 31st March,
Particulars 3025 2024
Provision for Income Tax/ Advance Tax/ TDS g.80 72.79
Provision for Expenses 15.19 -
Total 23.99 72.79
Particulars Amount Date of
Payment
T.D.5, on Contract 252,521 252,521
T.D.5. on Profession 137,650 137,650
T.0u5. on Rent 60,000 60,000
T.DL5, on Salanes 450,000 450,000
T.C.5. on Sales Of Goods 19,012 19,012
Total 919 583 919 583
Note 17 : Revenue from operations [Rs. in Lakhs)
i:’ Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1 Sales of products (refer sub nate 17.1) 2.207.65 2,183,432
2 |5zle of zervices = =
Total 2,207.65 2,183.42
17.1 Sale of products
:;' Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1 Sales - Export = =
2 Sales - Gak 2.107.48 2,019.68
3  |Sales - Electricity income from Wind energy 100,18 100.64
4 |5zle of Shares - £3.10
Total 2, 207.65 2,182.42
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Note 18 : Other income
3:; Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Other Hon operating revenue
1 Interest recd.on loans given - 6.14
2 Insurance Claim = 16,45
3 Dividend Received 0.03 0.04
4 |Misc.Income and Discount Recd. 1.03 6,54
5 |Balance Writken off 3.78
=1 Interest on FDR 24.08
7 |Agriculture Income 3.75
8 |Sales Of Wastage 4.54
% |Demate Charges 0.03
10 |Short Term Capial Gain 11.48
Total 48.72 20,17
Note 19 : Cost of material consumed (Rs. in Lakhs)
f‘; Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1 |Cost of materals consumed: 1,951.14 1,429.92
{refer suf note 18.1]
Total 1,951.14 1,429.02
18.1 Costofmaterials consumed
:; Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1 |Consumotion of raw materal
Opening stock 206.48 165.48
Add.Purchases;- 1,.875.04 1,470.91
Raw Material = &
Packing Material Consumed = -
Consumanles consumed
Total 2.081.52 1,636.40
Less :- Closing stock 13C6.28 206.43
Total 1,951.14 1,429.92
Note 20 : Change in inventorie (Rs. in Lakhs)
5.
N, i 2024-25 2023-24
1 i PR rye fimished 7
Opening stock:-
Trading Material = -
Manufacturing goods = =
Total A - -
Closing stock :- = =
Trading Material - -
Manufacturing goods = -
Total B - -

2 |Changes in inventories of work-in-progress

Opening stock
Closing stock

2 |c inl tori { Stock in Trad
Opening Stock
Closing Stock

Increse/ Decrese in Inventory

Sub total {b)

Sub total (c)

Total
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Note 21 : Employment benefit expenses (Rs. in Lakhs}

5r. No. Particulars 2024-23 2023-22
{i} | Salaries & Other Allowance 3285 | 4129
{ii} | Directors Remuneration [Plant) 18.00 | 18.00
{iii) Wages [Packing Charges) 0.E3 | 733
[wi) | Staff welfare Expenses 007 | 0.03
| Total 51.74 | 66.64
211 . Incentives to employees (Rs.in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars 2024-2025 2023-22
1 | Bonus -
Total
21,2 Employment provident fund (Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars 20248-25 2023-22
1 | Contribution to Provident Fund =
Total R
21.3 ESIC {Rs. in Lakhs)
|
Sr. No. Particulars 20248-25 2023-22
1 | Contribution to ESIC - -
Total
Note 22 : Financial cost {Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars 2024-35 2023-22
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(i} | Processing Charges and bank charges | 540 11 436.46
(i) | Interest on TDS | 025 1,374.00
Interest paid on Term loans, Covid and other | - 600 02800
(iii)
| loans _
[iv) | Bamk Comm & Charges 0.04
fotal 6.19 6.13

* Considered as Related Party Transaction. Refer to note no.25 for related party disclosura.

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortised cost | _: (Rs. in Lakhs)
5r. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-22
: Depreciation on Tangible Assets 89.95 101.14
Total 89.95 101.14
Note 24 : Manufacturing and Direct exp. {Rs. in Lakhs)
5r. No. Particulars 2024.75 2023.22
: Ftepal'l_'s grnd Matheggh_a:e e:p_n-:h_ers | 455 111831700
| Water and Electricity exp. ! 1382 | 2 748 081.00
| Repairs and Maintenance exp -vehicles 1 = | -
| Dealers Discount i 1958 | 13,412,015.00
| Loading an Unloading Charges | 015 [ 18,623.00
| Salt Digging and Labour charges | - | 6718000
| AMC Charges of Wind Mill | 2481 | 2,412 21000
| Consumables stores | 0.56 f 608,454 00
| Repairs and Maintenanca B_ui!ding E_::p | 116 301,200.00
| Repairs and Maintenance -Electrical | 0.47 :
| Potral &Diesel Expenses | 021
| Freight inward exp. | 039 ' 20,550.00
Total 65.80 207.27
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